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1      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Pursuant to Section 9-201(c)

2 of the Public Utilities Act and Section 200.850 of

3 the Commission's administrative rules, we will now

4 convene oral argument for the Illinois Commerce

5 Commission in Docket No. 12-0321.  This is ComEd's

6 annual update formula rate filing submitted pursuant

7 to Section 16-108.5 of the Public Utilities Act.

8               With me in Chicago are Commissioner

9 Ford, Commissioner O'Connell-Diaz and Commissioner

10 McCabe.  With us in Springfield via teleconference is

11 Commissioner Colgan.  I am Chairman Scott.  As the

12 Commission has noticed to the parties, we have four

13 topics for oral argument today, and they are as

14 follows:  Billing determinants, rate case expense,

15 charitable contributions and accumulated and deferred

16 income taxes on vacation pay.

17               Oral argument in this case was noticed

18 for today, December 5th, at 1:00 p.m. and all

19 participants should have received both the notice and

20 a schedule for today's oral argument.  As stated in

21 our notice, in addition to the topics already

22 identified, the parties should also be prepared to
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1 answer any questions regarding the record or the

2 pertinent law.

3               The parties may divide their allotted

4 time between initial argument and rebuttal, so please

5 let us know before you begin if you plan to reserve

6 time for rebuttal.  We have four participants today

7 as indicated in the oral argument schedule.  We will

8 have the following order of presentation.

9               First, Commonwealth Edison Company;

10 second, the Office of the Attorney General and the

11 AARP; third, the Citizens Utility Board; and fourth,

12 the Illinois Commerce Commission Staff.  We will use

13 that same order for rebuttal with Commonwealth Edison

14 also having the opportunity for surrebuttal.  ComEd

15 will have 30 minutes for its presentation.  Staff

16 will also have 30 minutes and the AG/AARP and CUB

17 will have 20 minutes each.

18               In terms of exhibits, the only

19 exhibits that we have received for use at today's

20 oral argument are two one-page documents received

21 from the office of the Attorney General and a

22 seven-page presentation received by ComEd.  So those
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1 are the only exhibits that we will allow for use

2 today.  Those are loaded up on the laptop for video

3 display here in Chicago.

4               Do you have hardcopies in Springfield,

5 Commissioner Colgan?

6      COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  Yes, I do.

7      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.  Very good.  For

8 timekeeping, our timekeeper, Mr. Star, will be

9 monitoring the times there in Chicago.  You should be

10 cognizant of your time usage, and we will attempt to

11 give our presenters a warning one minute before the

12 time has expired.  Otherwise, it should be up on the

13 screen there for you to see.

14               Again, please let both the

15 Commissioners and the timekeeper know if you are

16 reserving time for rebuttal to keep things on

17 schedule.  Your time allotment is inclusive of

18 questions from the Commissioners and any related

19 answers.  So please do be judicious with your time.

20 We will turn now to oral argument, and first we will

21 hear from Commonwealth Edison from Glenn Rippie and

22 Mark Johnson.  You have 30 minutes for both your
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1 initial presentation, rebuttal and surrebuttal.

2 Would you like to reserve time?

3      MR. RIPPIE:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  Our plan would

4 be to reserve between 15 and 16 minutes for rebuttal

5 or surrebuttal depending upon the volumes of

6 questions.

7      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Very good.  When you are

8 ready, you may begin, sir.

9      MR. RIPPIE:  Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and

10 Commissioners.  My name is Glenn Rippie.  I am

11 counsel for Commonwealth Edison along with my

12 colleague, Mr. Johnson, who will be addressing the

13 latter two issues.  We are here to present

14 Commonwealth Edison's oral argument today.  The

15 Proposed Order, as you know, involves many issues

16 including the tax issues that will be discussed

17 later.  On a few, however, including the two that I

18 will be discussing, billing determinants and rate

19 case expenses, it must be modified.

20               Mr. Johnson and I will attempt to

21 crystalize the issues for you in part because the

22 types of costs that are being disallowed such as the
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1 rate case expenses and charitable contributions are a

2 type of cost that has been recovered in hundreds of

3 rate cases for decades.  In contrast, the rulings of

4 the Proposed Order are in many cases novel and in

5 important cases sua sponte; that is, made without

6 support in the record and without argument prior to

7 the Proposed Order by parties.

8               Turning to the issue of billing

9 determinants.  Billing determinants are the

10 assumption that is used to convert the revenue

11 requirement that you set into rates.  If billing

12 determinants are set correctly, the utility has an

13 opportunity to recover the revenue requirement that

14 you establish.  However, when they are established

15 incorrectly or erroneously, inconsistently, then the

16 utility loses the opportunity to recover the revenue

17 requirement that you approve.

18               For example, by way of illustration on

19 the screen on the left or right or, Commissioner

20 Colgan, in front of you, if the billing determinants

21 are artificially high or overestimate the actual

22 amount of use, then the revenue received will fall
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1 under the revenue requirement.  Consistence with the

2 drive towards simplicity and predictably, the General

3 Assembly in the EIMA required that historical weather

4 normalized billing determinants be used in update

5 cases.  That is the plain language of 220 ILCS

6 5/16-108.5(c)(4)(H).

7               And while there has been argument that

8 that language can be varied, those arguments are

9 inconsistent with the statute itself.  In plain

10 language, historical data means data on the number of

11 customers and their use based on history.  That is,

12 data for the years that has passed.  In the 2012

13 case, that would be 2011 data.

14               Neither the Proposed Order, nor the

15 other parties' use of billing determinants comports

16 with that requirement.  Moreover, although they say

17 they want to update or match the 2012 plant with 2012

18 billing determinants; that is, not historical data,

19 but forecasts of 2012 data, they actually do not

20 support using 2012 data either.  Two more please.

21 There we go.

22               In fact, they support a mixture of
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1 projected 2012 number of customers data with 2011

2 historical gigawatt sales.  The result is to

3 artificially drive another $2 million wedge between

4 the revenue requirement you approved and what ComEd

5 could actually recover.  Now, the Proposed Order

6 relies heavily on the reasonable and prudent caveat

7 at the beginning of that section of EIMA, but those

8 standards apply to utility costs and utility

9 management behavior, and read any reasonable way,

10 they do not empower the Commission to disregard the

11 specific directives of the General Assembly and the

12 particular language that the General Assembly chose

13 in using historical billing determinants.

14               Moreover, if they did empower the

15 Commission to not use historical billing

16 determinants, surely the same argument that would

17 argue for using 2012 data would argue for using 2012

18 data consistently.  And though the intervenors dwell

19 on arguments for using 2012 customer count, there is

20 no good reason offered for not also using 2012 data

21 for the number of customers.  Indeed, failing to do

22 that is based on premises which are not sustained by
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1 the record about the linkage between customers

2 accounts and plant investment.

3               Turning to rate case expense.  Rate

4 case costs are utility operating expenses.  In the

5 words of the Madigan case that the Proposed Order

6 quotes, "Illinois courts have allowed utilities to

7 recover rate case expenses, because the costs

8 incurred by a utility to prepare and present a rate

9 case are properly recoverable as ordinary and

10 reasonable costs of doing business."

11               Section 9-229 of the Public Utilities

12 Act requires you to make a specific finding about

13 those costs, that they are just and reasonable.

14 While EIMA requires you to evaluate the evidence in a

15 certain way, and in particular to require challenges

16 to utility cost evidence to be particularized and

17 supported by evidence, those statutes can and should

18 both be given effect, and they can and should both be

19 read together.

20               In this case the only evidence in the

21 record is that the rate case expenses for the 2011

22 formula rate case are reasonable.  That was the
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1 testimony of Mr. Fruehe and the testimony of Staff

2 witness Tolsdorf.  Both of them testified without

3 objection as experts, and under Illinois law, experts

4 are not required to introduce into evidence the data

5 on which their expert's testimony relies.  Both case

6 law and the newly adopted Illinois Rules of Evidence

7 make that clear.  And where there is no contrary

8 evidence, neither the Commission, nor any other court

9 or administrative agency can simply disregard the

10 testimony.

11               In short, you have a more than

12 adequate record to make the finding that you are

13 being asked to make under 229.  The Proposed Order

14 sua sponte disallows those.  No testimony supported

15 that and no party argued for it prior to the Proposed

16 Order.

17      COMMISSIONER O'CONNELL-DIAZ:  Mr. Rippie, was

18 that -- there any cross-examination relative to the

19 Company's evidence?

20      MR. RIPPIE:  Let me verify that, but none that

21 I recall.  There was, however, a number of data

22 requests served and a great variety of backup
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1 evidence was provided, which is the subject --

2      COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  Excuse me.  Somebody

3 asked the question, and I did not hear the question.

4      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  That was my fault,

5 Commission Colgan, and I just asked Mr. Rippie with

6 regard to was there any cross-examination of the

7 Company's evidence as presented in their testimony by

8 any party?

9      COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  Thank you.

10      MR. RIPPIE:  That evidence is the subject of an

11 alternative motion that is pending before the

12 Commission.  In the event that it feels like that

13 material should be in the record, you can entertain

14 it, but it certainly is not required, and it is not

15 required by Madigan, which is both a case that speaks

16 outside of the EIMA context, I might add, to a

17 circumstance where there was conflicting evidence and

18 speaks to the finding that the Commission must make.

19 Its commentary on the evidence that the Commission

20 might consider relates to a situation where the fees

21 were collected, I believe, at least in large part on

22 an hourly basis.
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1               Lastly, at issue is fees for the 2011

2 future tester case that was never brought.  The

3 essence of this argument is simple.  ComEd at the

4 time that it did this work did not know EIMA would

5 pass and was facing a future revenue deficiency.

6 Just like when facing a storm utilities prudently and

7 reasonably dispatch their crews in advance, we

8 started preparing a rate case and spent a modest

9 amount of money on it.  The fact that that rate case

10 did not materialize did not make it imprudent,

11 unreasonable or unrecoverable.  Thank you.

12      MR. JOHNSON:  Good afternoon, Chairman Scott

13 and Commissioners.  My name is Mark Johnson, and I

14 will be presenting argument on the last two issues,

15 charitable contributions and accumulated deferred

16 income taxes or ADIT associated with accrued vacation

17 pay.

18               Beginning with charitables, like the

19 issue of billing determinants and rate case expense,

20 the General Assembly has provided specific direction

21 regarding the recoverability of these donations.

22 Indeed, it views them of such importance that it
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1 enacted a statute that specifically provides for the

2 recovery of a reasonable donation made by a public

3 utility for the public welfare or for charitable,

4 scientific, religious or educational purposes.

5               Importantly, the legislature forbids

6 the Commission from establishing presumptions or

7 rules that would disallow recovery of these

8 contributions.  My comments then will address the

9 extent to which the Proposed Order faithfully

10 implements the General Assembly's policy in favor of

11 these donations.

12               First, the Proposed Order

13 appropriately rejects Staff's varied attempts to

14 disallow dotations to organizations that provide

15 educational opportunities for children and adults,

16 job training, support for our troops and their

17 families, assistance to those experiencing hardships.

18 These include, for example, Project Brotherhood,

19 which is a community based outreach and prevention

20 program for African American men residing in south

21 side communities in Chicago.  It includes the

22 Institute For Positive Living, which seeks to help
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1 families solve educational, social and economical

2 problems, and it also includes the American Legion,

3 which, of course, is the nation's largest wartime

4 Veterans' services organization.

5               There being no dispute that the

6 contributions were, in fact, made to these worthy

7 organizations, the Proposed Order rightly rejects

8 each of Staff's arguments.  With the Commission

9 having already rejected Staff's unlawful 501(c)(3)

10 filter just a few months ago in Ameren's formula rate

11 case, the Proposed Order further disposes of

12 unfounded arguments that these donations are

13 indiscreet dues or lobbying expenses.

14               Turning secondly to the donations that

15 were made to organizations outside of ComEd's service

16 territory, as we all know, a lot of angst has been

17 spilled on the subject, and I think the issue boils

18 down to whether Section 9-227 imposes restriction on

19 the geographical location of the organization that

20 receives the donation.  It's clear from the face of

21 the statute that it does not and requires only that

22 contribution be for the public welfare or charitable,
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1 scientific, religious or educational purposes, and

2 while most of ComEd's donations are made to

3 organizations within its service territory -- in

4 fact, I think it's about 95 percent in this case -- a

5 small portion of its contributions are made to

6 organizations outside of the service territory,

7 including several educational institutions, and not

8 unreasonably, these donations simply reflect how we

9 live.  Our education, our interests, our

10 relationships and even our charity, extend far beyond

11 the border of ComEd's service territory and even the

12 State of Illinois.

13      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  Mr. Johnson, with

14 regard to your last comment, the particular

15 institutions that are at issue in this proceeding

16 that are outside the service territory are what?

17      MR. JOHNSON:  Correct.  There are a number of

18 universities.  If you give me just a moment, I can

19 identify those.

20      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  Well, I don't want

21 you to take up too much of your time.

22      MR. JOHNSON:  Well, just to give you a



18

1 sampling, Harvard University, Drexel University --

2 let's see -- Penn State University, St. Joseph

3 University, University of Pennsylvania, organizations

4 such as that.  And in case you would like to look

5 into this further, it was also attached to Mr.

6 Fruehe's rebuttal testimony as Exhibit 13.05.

7               I'd just add that along these lines

8 there is also probably more than a few of us present

9 here today who attended universities outside of this

10 state and who benefit daily from discoveries made at

11 institutions beyond our borders.  As such, these

12 contributions should not be subject to a more

13 stringent standard of review.

14      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Mr. Johnson, let me just stop

15 you there for a second, and nobody is arguing that

16 the Company can't make these charitable

17 contributions.  The only question is whether it's

18 reasonable for ratepayers in your service territory

19 to pay for them.  Any kind of nexus between the

20 University of South Carolina, Arch Diocese of

21 Philadelphia, the YMCA of Philadelphia when there are

22 those kinds of organizations that exist right here in
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1 Illinois?  I mean, is there any attempt at any nexus

2 to that?

3               I mean, we can see how those end up --

4 I mean, we can guess how those end up being made and

5 that's fine for the company to do it.  It's just a

6 question of recovery from Illinois ratepayers.

7      MR. JOHNSON:  Certainly.  To address your

8 question, I think you have a couple of filters, if we

9 could use that term.  We do have the statute that

10 limits the categories and one of those is educational

11 purposes.  And so there is the nexus in the sense

12 that those contributions go toward, you know,

13 important educational institutions; Harvard

14 University, having more than a few presidents coming

15 out of there.  And I think we have experienced the

16 benefits of that here in Illinois.

17               So as far as, you know, tracing the

18 exact benefits, that can be difficult, but I think

19 these sorts of contributions fall within the statute.

20 They are educational institutions.

21      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  So there is no kind of filter

22 anywhere.  I mean, it could be a place in South
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1 America, in East Asia.  It doesn't matter.  As long

2 as it fits educational, charitable, religious, it's

3 okay?

4      MR. JOHNSON:  I think that that question is

5 still yet to be answered.  It's not before the

6 Commission right now as to whether something in

7 Asia -- the reasonableness determination is

8 ultimately up to you.

9      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.  Well, that's kind of my

10 question.  I mean, are you saying that there is a

11 blanket prohibition against us deciding a geographic

12 limitation with respect to reasonableness, or can we

13 make that determination?

14      MR. JOHNSON:  Well, you know, and that's where

15 we run into the statute saying no presumptions or

16 rules.  So I think it would be difficult to enact a

17 blanket prohibition, you know, in the event there was

18 a contribution that was outside the borders of the

19 U.S.

20      COMMISSIONER FORD:  To expound on that, I do

21 know, for instance, coming from Chicago Public

22 Schools, in fact, a number of our students go to
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1 these universities, and they have been given

2 scholarships.  I don't know if that's a filter for

3 us, but I am very prod of some of those individuals.

4      MR. JOHNSON:  Of course.  Since, I guess, the

5 time is ticking by quickly here, I think the point

6 that we have just discussed as part of this Q & A is

7 that the concern is just the chilling affect that the

8 Proposed Order standard might have on these out of

9 state contributions.  And even though they are such a

10 small portion, if we are held to a higher standard of

11 having to show this direct customer benefit where our

12 other contributions are not, you know, there is

13 obvious concern that these contributions then just

14 wouldn't be made.  So we do ask that the Commission

15 reconsider its position on these out of territory

16 contributions and reject the Proposed Order's

17 conclusion.

18               Turning quickly to ADIT,

19 unfortunately, the far more complex of the two

20 issues, we do agree with the Proposed Order's

21 conclusion which properly rejects AG and CUB's

22 unfounded adjustments that reduce ComEd's rate base
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1 by over 8.5 million for an assumed tax benefit that

2 simply does not exist.

3               And I just want to answer three

4 questions related to this topic hopefully to bring

5 some clarity and framework.  First, what is accrued

6 vacation pay, and how does ComEd account for it?

7 Similar to other companies, ComEd employees are

8 awarded vacation pay each year.  Vacation days are

9 awarded for a given year in January, but accounting

10 rules direct ComEd to recognize this known and

11 measurable liability the preceding December.  At this

12 time, ComEd records both an operating reserve

13 liability and a deferred debit for the next calendar

14 year.

15               With respect to that operating reserve

16 liability, I think end of 2011 ComEd reported

17 approximately 46 million in FERC Account 242 for the

18 vacation pay it would pay in 2012.  At the end of

19 2011 ComEd also recorded a deferred debit of nearly

20 21 million in FERC account 186.  That represents the

21 amount of vacation pay that ComEd estimates will be

22 capitalized being distributed to capital projects in
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1 2012.

2               The second question, what is ADIT and

3 how does it relate to this accrued vacation --

4      COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  Mr. Johnson.  Was this

5 deferred debit piece ever brought up in the first

6 rate case?

7      MR. JOHNSON:  This particular issue was not

8 brought up in the first formula rate case in 11-0721

9 was my understanding.

10               With respect to the ADIT, generally

11 speaking, this -- the deferred income taxes are

12 designed to address the timing difference between the

13 amount of income reported for book purposes versus

14 the amount reported for tax purposes.  It's usually

15 due to delays surrounding when deductions actually

16 reduce tax liabilities.  And you can then have either

17 a deferred income tax liability or a deferred income

18 tax asset.

19               With respect to the 46 million

20 operating reserve liability recorded at the end of

21 2011, a temporary timing difference exists there.

22 While the accounting rules require that this item
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1 must be accrued in 2011, tax rules state that a

2 deduction may not be taken on ComEd's tax return

3 until the vacation benefit is paid.  Thus, a book

4 liability is recognized before the accompanying tax

5 benefit is recognized.  And the deferred income tax

6 asset reflects the amount of the tax deduction or

7 benefit that ComEd will realize in a subsequent

8 period when the vacation pay benefit is paid.

9               The $21 million deferred debit that we

10 talked about earlier is different, and it represents

11 the amount of vacation pay that ComEd estimated would

12 be capitalized during 2012, but because ComEd had not

13 charged these amounts to capital projects at the end

14 of '11, this amount is not recognized as capital for

15 book purposes and leaves no income tax deduction to

16 take.  So everything related to this debit takes

17 place in 2012.  And then -- and thus no temporary

18 timing difference exists being book and tax impacts.

19               So, finally, why is intervenors'

20 adjustment improper here?  As the Proposed Order

21 pointed out, as well as Staff and ComEd, the problem

22 with the intervenors' argument is they impute an 8.5
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1 million tax benefit that was never reported.  It's

2 because it does not exist and was only created by

3 intervenors in this docket by netting together the

4 operating reserve liability and that deferred debit.

5 However, this deferred debit, as we discussed, had no

6 place in the ADIT calculation, because there is no

7 timing issue associated with that debit.

8               So the Proposed Order reached a

9 similar conclusion and, therefore, we ask that its

10 conclusion be adopted on this issue.

11      COMMISSIONER MCCABE:  Are you saying that the

12 deferred debit should not be netted?

13      MR. JOHNSON:  Correct, should not be netted

14 with the $46 million amount.

15      COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  What was the total

16 portion of the -- what was the portion of the total

17 vacation accrual that was recorded as an expense?

18      MR. JOHNSON:  So the -- we had the 46 million

19 as the operating reserve liability, and then we had

20 the -- I think did we say a 22 -- $21 million

21 deferred debt.

22      COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  The 20,741.
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1      MR. JOHNSON:  I'm sorry.  What was that?

2      COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  You said 21 --

3 20,741,000, is that the number you are talking about?

4      MR. JOHNSON:  On the schedule here, yeah, the

5 20,741 is the amount of the deferred debit, right.

6 That was -- and everything with respect to that

7 deferred debt happens in 2012, for both book and tax

8 purposes and then the accrued vacation amount is

9 separately recorded as the operating reserve

10 liability of the 46 million.

11      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  Mr. Johnson, just

12 to be clear, with regard to the position, is this the

13 position of AG and AARP alone versus everyone else in

14 the docket does not have an issue with the Proposed

15 Order?

16      MR. JOHNSON:  I believe CUB, AG and AARP take

17 issue with this, and then Staff, ComEd and the

18 Proposed Order --

19      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  Agree?

20      MR. JOHNSON:  -- agree.  Thank you.

21      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you.  Mr. Rippie, we

22 started your clock a little early.  So we will give
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1 you eight minutes on rebuttal then.

2      MR. RIPPIE:  Thank you, sir.

3      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.  Thank you.  Next we

4 will hear from Sue Satter and Karen Lusson giving

5 argument on behalf of the Office of the Attorney

6 General and the AARP.  You will have 20 minutes.

7 Would you like to reserve any time?

8      MS. SATTER:  I would like to try to reserve a

9 minute, and I am sure Ms. Lusson will try to reserve

10 some time as well.

11      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Go ahead.

12      MS. SATTER:  Thank you.  Good afternoon,

13 Commissioners.  My name is Susan Satter.  I am with

14 the Office of the Attorney General.  We represent the

15 People of the State of Illinois.  I am also speaking

16 on behalf of AARP.  Karen Lusson, also with the

17 Office of the Attorney General will be addressing

18 charitable contributions and billing determinants.  I

19 will address accumulated deferred income taxes or

20 ADIT on vacation pay reserve and, No. 2, the rate

21 case expense.

22               So first the vacation pay ADIT
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1 question.  I would like to start with where ComEd and

2 we agree.  The Company holds money as accrued

3 vacation pay.  Oral argument Exhibit 1 shows that

4 that counts.  It shows a total amount at Line 14 of

5 $51.3 million, which then is subject to an allocation

6 for the Illinois jurisdictional portion of $46

7 million.  We agree.  ComEd, as Mr. Johnson stated,

8 has designated 20,741,000 of that 46 as capitalized

9 vacation pay.  In other words, that vacation pay is

10 associated with capital projects.  And as he also

11 said before you, that money will be accounted for in

12 2012.  Okay.

13               So that means that the $20.7 million

14 that's going to the capital accounts is not part of

15 the 2011 vacation pay operating reserve.  So it is

16 not part of the adjustments to rate base, because

17 it's been transferred to 2012.  So that results in a

18 net rate base deduction that is the difference

19 between the 46 million we see in AG Oral Argument

20 Exhibit 1 and the 20,741,000 debit amount that we see

21 in Column C on the same exhibit.

22               So the question is, what is the tax
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1 effect of this rate treatment?  First of all, there

2 is an ADIT, a deferred tax, which in this case

3 reduces the rate base adjustment.  Okay.  So should

4 the tax effect of the vacation pay operating reserve

5 be based on the actual rate base adjustment, the net

6 rate base adjustment of about 25 million, or should

7 the tax effect be based on the gross amount of the

8 vacation pay operating reserve?  That would be the

9 46.  If we look at AG Oral Argument Exhibit No. 2, we

10 will see in the column on the left the Company's

11 position, and you have the capitalized vacation pay

12 being netted against the jurisdictional reserve for

13 accrued vacation, but then the calculation of the

14 deferred taxes is made by multiplying the $46 million

15 gross total operating reserve against the deferred

16 taxes amount, 41.175 percent.  If you had a

17 calculator, it would be helpful because plugging the

18 numbers in you see that you get the $18.9 million

19 figure.

20               So ultimately the question is, does

21 the tax -- does the deferred tax apply to the net of

22 the operating reserve that is accounted for in 2011,
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1 or does it somehow apply to the gross even though

2 20.7 million of that gross is being transferred to

3 2012?  We think the question is not complicated, and

4 that that is the crux of the question.

5               Now, the Proposed Order notes that

6 this issue was unnecessarily complicated, and I

7 believe the issue was complicated because of the

8 accounting terms that it brings with it.  Now, while

9 these accounting terms might be shorthand for

10 accountants, as a layperson even though I am a lawyer

11 in this practice, these accounting terms can

12 sometimes muddle the issue rather than clarify it.

13 Deferred income tax liability, deferred income tax

14 asset, deferred tax debit balance, vacation pay

15 deferred debit; what are we really talking about?

16 What we are really talking about is a vacation pay

17 reserve from which 20.7 million was removed and moved

18 into 2012.

19      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  Did you present a

20 witness with regard to this?

21      MS. SATTER:  Oh absolutely.

22      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  What was the
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1 witness's name?

2      MS. SATTER:  That's Mr. David Effron and that's

3 AG Exhibit 2.0 and 4.0 and the exhibits, the oral

4 argument exhibits, are both from his testimony.

5      COMMISSIONER O'CONNELL-DIAZ:  Thank you.

6      MS. SATTER:  You might ask, why didn't Staff

7 take a position on this?  The Company seemed to

8 represent that Staff was with the Company on this.

9 But let me tell you, what the record said, Staff

10 witness Bridal asked, specifically asked ComEd to

11 clarify its position on surrebuttal, but I will

12 submit to you that Staff was ultimately stymied by

13 the verbiage that was included in the ComEd

14 testimony, and that would be ComEd Exhibits 13 and

15 19.

16               And this is what Staff said in its

17 brief.  At Page 11 of its initial brief, this is what

18 Staff said.  If the threshold question of whether any

19 ADIT associated with accrued vacation pay deferred

20 debit exists was answered in the positive -- which we

21 maintain it clearly is -- Staff believes the

22 intervenor proposal to have merit, and this is Staff
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1 initial brief at Page 11.

2               So ultimately we think the question

3 is, should the tax be based on the net vacation pay

4 reserve or based on the gross vacation pay reserve,

5 and we applied it to the net.  ComEd applies it to

6 the gross, and that's the difference.

7               Okay.  Now, turning to rate case

8 expense.

9      COMMISSIONER O'CONNELL-DIAZ:  With regard to

10 the Staff position, and you are suggesting that we

11 understand it from your viewpoint, have they

12 addressed that in their reply brief on exceptions?

13      MS. SATTER:  They didn't.  They took no

14 position.

15      COMMISSIONER O'CONNELL-DIAZ:  So this was your

16 interpretation?

17      MS. SATTER:  Well, I'm just saying that that

18 was what was in their brief.  I mean, I am just

19 reading what was in their initial brief.

20      COMMISSIONER O'CONNELL-DIAZ:  But there is

21 nothing in their reply briefs that syncs up with what

22 you have just suggested?
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1      MS. SATTER:  No.

2      COMMISSIONER O'CONNELL-DIAZ:  Thank you.

3      MS. SATTER:  As far as I know, they -- I think

4 they were hands-off.  Now, I also wanted to point

5 out, because 0721 -- and that, in fact, in that case

6 there was an adjustment made for vacation pay that

7 was not the capitalized portion.  So you didn't have

8 this.

9      COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  In the Proposed Order, it

10 criticizes the argument that there was no accounting

11 authority cited by ComEd or AG/AARP or CUB to support

12 this proposed adjustment, and in your brief on

13 exceptions, you say that no accounting authority

14 exists that can address this issue.

15      MS. SATTER:  Let me explain that.  The

16 treatment of deferred taxes is something that's a

17 general accounting standard.  It won't apply

18 specifically to a vacation pay reserve.  It won't

19 apply specifically to a capitalization of a portion

20 of that reserve or a movement of a portion of that

21 reserve to another year.  So the rule is kind of your

22 basic rule that deferred -- that operating reserves
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1 money that the Company holds is a rate base

2 adjustment, and then you apply the tax effect.

3               So there isn't really a special rule

4 for it, because it isn't really a special situation.

5 It's a simple situation.  It's gross versus net, and

6 there's no special rule that addresses that.

7               Okay.  On rate case expense, I want to

8 just be as brief as I can.  On the un-filed rate case

9 ComEd says that it needed to do -- to do something in

10 2011.  There were six months between the -- less than

11 six months between the time you entered their last

12 ComEd rate case order on May 24th, 2011 and 2012.

13 That revenue requirement was $178 million more than

14 ComEd is seeking for 2011 in this case so what was

15 the need to expend money for rate case expense during

16 that period when the evidence that we have appears to

17 show that they reserved more money than they are even

18 asking for now?  I think it's unreasonable to expect

19 consumers to pay for a rate case expense under those

20 circumstances.

21               I think it's just simply unreasonable,

22 and you have the power to make an unreasonableness
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1 adjustment.  What about 11-0721?  Yes.  Clearly there

2 were expenses incurred, but Section 9-229 creates a

3 very specific standard for rate case expenses.  Mr.

4 Rippie is right.

5               Rate case expenses have been recovered

6 for decades, but in 2009 the General Assembly said

7 whoa.  We need to take a closer look at this, and

8 maybe it was because of the $10 million rate case

9 expenses that were beginning to flow through.  The

10 General Assembly said, slow down.  Commissioners, you

11 must specifically asses this amount.  ComEd knows the

12 law.  They understand the burden of proof.  They have

13 the obligation to come forward with the information.

14 They did.  The ALJ could do nothing.  Should could

15 not specifically assess as she was specifically

16 directed to do.  So we support the ALJ's decision in

17 that record, and I thank you for your attention.

18      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you.  Ms. Lusson?

19      MS. LUSSON:  Good afternoon.  To the extent

20 there is time remaining, I would like to save a

21 minute.  I am first going to address the issue of

22 billing determinants.  ComEd's argument which takes
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1 issue with the Proposed Order's conclusion on the

2 billing determinant adjustment would set in place an

3 over-recovery of its authorized revenue requirement

4 through an underestimate of the number of customers

5 in a rate year.

6               So we agree with Mr. Rippie's point

7 about this being a matter of simple math, because

8 billing determinants effect the amount of revenue

9 that ComEd collects ultimately through the setting of

10 its specific rates.  The problem with ComEd's

11 position is that if you underestimate the number of

12 customers to collect the revenue from, you spread the

13 revenue requirement over too few customers that

14 actually exist, and rates will be too high and you

15 consistently over-recover the authorized revenue

16 requirement.

17               So why did the Proposed Order get it

18 right?  Why did AG/AARP, CUB and Staff agree that

19 this adjustment needed to be made?  ComEd's own

20 evidence showed that the plant additions included in

21 rate base for this case, approximately 130 million,

22 represents facilities to accommodate new business or
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1 customer growth, in other words.

2               Keep in mind that the rates set for

3 the 2013 rate year -- that will be the initiation of

4 the new rates -- are based on two components; the

5 historical cost from 2011 in FERC Form 1 and plant

6 additions for 2012.  So the billing determinant

7 adjustment associated with new business in 2012

8 correctly matches the 2012 plant additions associated

9 with new business in 2012 that are being added to

10 rate base with the increase in the number of

11 customers responsible for that new business

12 investment.

13               So if the plant to serve customers in

14 2012 is included in rate base, then it's a simple

15 matter of consistency that the new customers served

16 by that plant should be included in the billing

17 determinants.

18               In terms of Mr. Rippie's argument

19 about statutorily language not supporting this

20 adjustment, that argument was specifically addressed

21 by the Commission in your 11-0721 Order, and again,

22 the Proposed Order and the ALJ in the Proposed Order
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1 did a good job in responding to that argument.  In

2 the previous formula rate case, 11-0721 like today it

3 matched customer growth and associated billing

4 determents with ComEd's projected plant additions.

5               ComEd stated that the new formula rate

6 provisions didn't allow an adjustment to historical

7 billing determinants, but again, we think ComEd and

8 the Proposed Order agree that ComEd is sort of taking

9 a selective reading of that statute.

10               16-108.5(c)(4)(H), which is the

11 subsection that's relevant here, specifically

12 references the Commission's obligation to quote "set

13 forth" protocols subject to a determination of

14 prudence and reasonableness consistent with

15 Commission practice and law, and that includes

16 historical weather normalized billing determinants.

17 So the adjustment at issue and proposed by Staff, AG,

18 AARP and CUB is needed to ensure that the billing

19 determinants that are used to set rates for 2013

20 don't provide the Company with a windfall, and that's

21 why the Proposed Order concluded the way it did.

22               Finally, regarding the alleged need to
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1 reflect a decrease in usage, ComEd's complaint that

2 the billing determinants adjustment doesn't take into

3 account the decrease, again, this adjustment as

4 concluded by the Proposed Order and the ALJs in the

5 Proposed Order replicates that which you did in

6 11-0721 and in that case the specific -- the

7 Commission specifically noted that the proposed

8 adjustment did, in fact, take into account decreased

9 usage, because with an increase in the number of new

10 customers from that reported new business, the

11 adjustment did not recommend increasing the amount of

12 total kilowatt sales in the billing determinants.

13               I would add that the number of

14 customers is growing steadily is a fact based on

15 ComEd's putting in this new business in its rate

16 base.  It doesn't deny that.  The change in usage per

17 customer from year to year is not certain to the same

18 degree as the growth in the number of customers in

19 the evidentiary record that you have before you.  So

20 next I would like to briefly --

21      COMMISSIONER MCCABE:  Could I ask a question on

22 that topic?
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1      MS. LUSSON:  Sure.

2      COMMISSIONER MCCABE:  Will this also be

3 addressed in the reconciliation?

4      COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  I can't hear the

5 question.

6      COMMISSIONER MCCABE:  Sorry, Commissioner.  I

7 asked whether this would be dealt with in the

8 reconciliation.

9      MS. LUSSON:  The reconciliation, as I recall,

10 will implement the -- incorporate the same billing

11 determinants that are used in the Order that sets the

12 rates.  However, that being said, each year when

13 ComEd comes forward with its proposed rates, those --

14 each filing contains adjusted billing determinants

15 based on what we have experienced in that particular

16 year as reflected in FERC Form 1.

17               Again, briefly on charitable

18 contributions, a couple points.  We concur with this

19 Commission's ruling in the past, and in the Proposed

20 Order in which the ALJ adopted the recommendation to

21 disallow contributions that are made by ComEd outside

22 of its service territory.  The -- we support that
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1 disallowance.  The ratepaying public, as you stated

2 in your 11-0721 rate Order, is not necessarily

3 associated or benefiting from donations made outside

4 of ComEd's service territory.  There are certainly

5 plenty of organizations within ComEd's service

6 territory that are worthy of its donations.

7      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  How can that be if we have an

8 institution of learning where some of our students

9 may end up or pursuant to programs that are sponsored

10 by companies within our state, that those students

11 may come here and be part of our workforce, pay

12 taxes, put their children in school and become part

13 of the Illinois economic engine?  How does that not

14 serve that public welfare that's contemplated by the

15 statute?

16      MS. LUSSON:  Well, the donations at issue here

17 are donations that Staff recognized as being outside

18 of ComEd's service territory.  They are organizations

19 outside of the confines of ComEd's service territory.

20      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  I understand that,

21 but you're suggesting that everyone stays in state to

22 go to Harvard University?
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1      MS. LUSSON:  No, certainly not.  Obviously

2 there are students in ComEd's service territory that

3 attend out of state institutions and -- but this is

4 about ComEd spending ratepayer dollars for the

5 public's benefit.  The public, in our view, meaning

6 the ratepayers of its service territory.

7      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  I'm proposing that

8 there is a benefit to our ratepayers by having that

9 type of symbiotic relationship with these

10 institutions of learning.

11      MS. LUSSON:  And I think if I understand your

12 point, if there was record evidence where ComEd

13 showed that, for example, as you referenced,

14 Commissioner Ford, that there were certain

15 individuals within ComEd's service territory that

16 were obtaining scholarships from the University of

17 Pennsylvania or Penn State based on ComEd donations,

18 I think that that --

19      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  Where does it tell

20 me to do that in the statute?  Where does it advise

21 us to do that in the statute?

22      MS. LUSSON:  I think the statute makes clear
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1 that these are supposed to be donations for the

2 public welfare, and in our view that --

3      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  You are layering

4 on another requirement that the Company is supposed

5 to do when they request this type of coverage.

6      MS. LUSSON:  It's not an additional

7 requirement.  The words "public welfare" are within

8 Section 9-227.

9      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  I understand that,

10 but I am suggesting that the word "public welfare"

11 means just as I suggested, that there is public

12 welfare from having institutions of learning --

13 nuclear engineers would be at other universities that

14 come back here and work in our power plants.

15      MS. LUSSON:  And I guess the short answer again

16 is that ComEd is free to make those donations to

17 those institutions.  It's just a matter of whether

18 ratepayers in its service territory should be paying.

19      COMMISSIONER FORD:  I guess my only issue would

20 have been that with some of those individuals, their

21 family was still here and they would be a part of the

22 public welfare because these people went away and
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1 came back and their families were still here paying

2 and they bear the cost.  So that's my issue with

3 that, especially with higher learning.  That's just a

4 surmise.

5      MS. LUSSON:  And again, that is a donation that

6 the Company can continue to make.  Thank you.

7      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Now, we hear from Christie

8 Hicks representing the Citizens Utility Board, and

9 you will have 20 minutes.

10               Would you like to reserve time?

11      MS. HICKS:  Yes, I would like to reserve

12 approximately five minutes for rebuttal, please.

13               Good afternoon, Chairman and

14 Commissioners.  My name is Christie Hicks, and I

15 represent the Citizens Utility Board.  I will be

16 addressing two issues here today, the accumulated

17 deferred income taxes or ADITs on ComEd accrued

18 vacation pay, as well as the billing determinants

19 issue.

20               I will start with the ADIT on accrued

21 vacation pay, and this is a technical issue.  So I am

22 going to start and attempt to simplify things with
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1 what is not at issue here.  What is not at issue is

2 that the Company has reserve for accrued vacation

3 pay.  The Company calculated ADIT for the accrued

4 vacation pay liability amount.  The Company also has

5 a deferred debit related to the accrued vacation pay,

6 which it added back to rate base.  This is a deferred

7 debit, because it will be charged to capital projects

8 during the year in which the vacation is taken.  This

9 deferred debit did not yet reduce expense for book or

10 tax purposes.  So it will.  The Company has not

11 reflected ADIT on this deferred debit amount, and

12 finally the deferred debit is only temporary.  None

13 of that is at issue here.

14               So you may ask, what is the dispute?

15 The dispute is whether the ADIT on the temporary

16 deferred debit portion of the Company's accrued

17 vacation pay should be reflected in rate base.  The

18 company argues that it should not, since it has not

19 yet been capitalized and that ADIT reflected in rate

20 base should be based upon only the accrued liability

21 for vacation and does not have to be matched with the

22 net amount of the rate base deduction.
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1               We argue that it should because the

2 deferred debt is only temporary and the ADIT accrued

3 on it is -- ADIT accrues on it just as ADIT accrues

4 on the rest of the accrued vacation pay.  The genesis

5 of the deferred debit is the same as the genesis of

6 the accrued vacation pay liability for which ComEd

7 agreed to calculate ADIT.  Essentially, ComEd has put

8 their accrued vacation pay into two buckets.  As Mr.

9 Johnson explained, that's the operating reserve

10 liability and the deferred debit, which is Account

11 186.

12               ComEd itself stated -- Mr. Johnson

13 stated here today, ComEd expects the deferred debit

14 to be capitalized in 2012.  As you all know, rates

15 set in this proceeding will be in effect in 2013.  It

16 is appropriate to calculate the ADIT on the deferred

17 debit.  The Company in its briefs throughout and its

18 testimony in this case raised arguments regarding the

19 EIMA or Energy Infrastructure and Modernization Act

20 as it applies to this issue.

21               The Company argues that to calculate

22 ADIT on the deferred debit amount would violate the
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1 EIMA, because it is not reflected on their FERC Form

2 1.  There are two important facts you should know

3 about that argument.  First, the deferred debit is

4 reflected in the general ledger in FERC Account 186

5 for the FERC Uniform System of Accounts for electric

6 utilities.

7               Second, the deferred debit is only

8 temporary.  This expense will be charged to capital

9 projects.  ComEd says they expect it to be charged in

10 2012 and, therefore, to calculate ADIT on the

11 deferred debit does not violate the EIMA.  The

12 deferred debit does exist.  It is only temporarily

13 deferred, and it will be charged as depreciation

14 expense when the capital projects are depreciated on

15 ComEd's books.

16               Turning to the Proposed Order's

17 analysis of this issue, the Proposed Order correctly

18 identifies the dispute which is, indeed, different

19 than the dispute in Docket 11-0721, but the Proposed

20 Order misses the key point here that the deferred

21 debit is only temporary.  It will be charged once the

22 vacation pay time is taken.  Given the temporary
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1 nature of the deferred debit, it is appropriate to

2 calculate ADIT on it now and that results in an

3 adjustment of approximately 8.54 million.

4               Turning now to billing determinants.

5 The Proposed Order accurately summarized and analyzed

6 this issue.  ComEd included in its rate base plant

7 additions to handle new business.  However, ComEd did

8 not adjust billing determinants to spread the revenue

9 requirement among those anticipated customers for

10 whom the new plant is being built.  If the billing

11 determinants calculation does not match the number of

12 customers that are actually served by the total

13 plant, the plant that has been included in rate base,

14 new and old, the revenue requirement will be assumed

15 to be spread amongst too few customers, and the rate

16 per customer will be too high, higher than ComEd

17 needs to recover its actual costs.

18               If I may offer an analogy to further

19 explain this issue, assume that you live in a

20 neighborhood and your neighborhood has a homeowner's

21 association and you pay fees for that.  Those fees

22 cover the cost of the lawns being mowed in your
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1 neighborhood.  There are 10 houses in your

2 neighborhood, and the homeowner's association pays

3 $100 each week to a company to mow all those lawns.

4 Each house then pays the homeowner's association $10

5 a weak.  Five new houses are built in your

6 neighborhood.  The grass mowing company only charges

7 an additional $20, because they are already in the

8 neighborhood.  They already have the equipment, and

9 they just have to do a little bit more work.  That

10 brings the total cost the homeowner's association

11 pays to $120 a week.  But rather than lowering the

12 fees to $8 per house, they continue to charge $10 per

13 house.  They net a profit of $30 over what they need

14 to cover their actual costs.

15               You don't have to be an accountant to

16 understand that this is not fair to you.  It's just

17 common sense.  Yet ComEd wants you to ignore common

18 sense.  They justify such a departure by arguing that

19 their delivery may decline.  Their Proposed Order

20 correctly notes the decline in usage is not

21 indicative of the number of customers on ComEd's

22 system.
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1               ComEd's argument is merely a

2 misdirection to distract you from the true issue.

3 They seek to include plants to serve new customers.

4 Yet they don't want to include these new customers in

5 their billing determinants.  It's just basic

6 matching.

7               As CUB has noted throughout the case,

8 the EIMA does not require as ComEd contends the use

9 of a historical weather normalized billing

10 determinant with no possible adjustment.

11               As Ms. Lusson explained, the statute

12 explicitly allows for the -- for a determination of

13 prudence and reasonableness consistent with

14 Commission practice and law.  The Proposed Order

15 correctly exercised the Commission's express

16 authority granted in the statute itself.  You,

17 Commission, have considered this very same issue in

18 Docket 11-0721, and you have reached the appropriate

19 decision in that case.

20               You required ComEd to adjust their

21 billing determinants, yet ComEd ignored their

22 directive here.  Even though they had a compliance
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1 filing after that Order came out, they chose not to

2 adjust their billing determinants.  In order to

3 ensure that ComEd does not over-recover for their

4 actual costs, you must make the same decision here,

5 to use common sense and accurately match billing

6 determinants to the number of customers actually

7 served by the plant that is included in rates.

8               If there are no questions --

9      COMMISSIONER MCCABE:  How do you respond to --

10 sorry.  How do you respond to the Company's assertion

11 that all the components have to be consistently

12 addressed including the kilowatt hours?

13      MS. HICKS:  The Company has argued that you are

14 quote "mixing and matching" years.  What we seek to

15 do is to match the 2012 plant with the 2012 number of

16 customers.  And that's not a mixing and matching.  We

17 haven't suggested that because the number of

18 customers is going to increase the usage will

19 increase.  So that does account for the

20 supposed anticipated decline in usage.

21      COMMISSIONER O'CONNELL-DIAZ:  You just keep

22 referring to the 11-0721 case.  Was there an
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1 appropriate adjustment on both sides with the

2 kilowatts hours in 2011 or was it 2010?  What was the

3 basis in that proceeding?

4      MS. HICKS:  I'm sorry.  I don't understand what

5 what you are asking.

6      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  Okay.  The

7 adjustment in that proceeding was based on 2011 data

8 to modify 2010 data and the 2010 billing determinant

9 only reflected the 2011 growth in the number of

10 customers, but it ignored the 2011 decrease in

11 kilowatt hours delivered.  How is it -- it's

12 lopsided.  Is that what you are suggesting we do

13 again here?

14      MS. HICKS:  No.  Certainly we are not

15 suggesting a lopsided answer.  What the 11-0721

16 docket did was match the plant that ComEd wanted

17 in -- the plant that ComEd said that it was building

18 to accommodate new customers with the actual number

19 of customers for whom that plant was being built, and

20 that's the same that we are asking you to do here,

21 except it's 2012 and 2012.

22               I will reserve the rest of my time for
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1 rebuttal then.  Thank you.

2      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Last up we will hear from

3 Jessica Cardoni and John Sagone giving argument on

4 behalf of the Staff of the Illinois Commerce

5 Commission.  30 minutes, and would you like to

6 reserve time?

7      MR. SAGONE:  Yes, if we could reserve any time

8 remaining after the presentation, Chairman.

9      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Very good.  Go ahead, sir.

10      MR. SAGONE:  Chairman and Commissioners, thank

11 you.  Good afternoon and thank you for the

12 opportunity to speak before you today.  My name is

13 John Sagone.  I and my co-counsel, Jessica Cardoni,

14 will present arguments on behalf of the Staff of the

15 Illinois Commerce Commission.  I will address the

16 issues of billing determinants and accumulated

17 deferred income taxes or ADIT related to the vacation

18 pay.  And Jessica Cardoni will address rate case

19 expense and charitable contributions.

20               Turning to the issue of billing

21 determinants, Staff agrees with the Proposed Order's

22 conclusion that the historical weather normalized
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1 billing determinants should be modified to more

2 accurately reflect customer growth corresponding to

3 estimated 2012 plant additions to serve new business.

4 The PO's conclusion results in billing determinants

5 that are based on accurate information and is

6 therefore consistent with the Commission's approach

7 to the ComEd Formula Rate Docket No. 11-0721 and with

8 the principles of reasonableness and prudence.

9               The central issue here is whether

10 historical weather normalized billing determinants

11 should be adjusted to reflect customer growth

12 corresponding to ComEd forecast's in 2012 plant

13 additions, which are built to accommodate 2012

14 customer growth.  This is the exact same issue that

15 the Commission addressed in the ComEd formula rate

16 docket and as the Commission rightly recognized in

17 its Order in that docket, if the billing determinants

18 do not match the number of customers that are served

19 by plant additions, then the revenue requirement will

20 be collected from too few customers.

21               The result is that the rate per

22 customer would be higher than it should be.  Such a
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1 result as the Commission pointed out in its Order in

2 the formula rate docket would be contrary to

3 principles of reasonableness and prudence.

4 Therefore, the Proposed Order's conclusion which

5 ensures that the billing determinants are based on

6 accurate information is appropriate.

7               ComEd objects to the Proposed Order's

8 conclusion by recycling the same arguments they've

9 made and that the Commission has already rejected in

10 the formula rate docket.  Specifically, ComEd argues

11 that EIMA requires the use of historical weather

12 normalized billing determinants only, and ComEd also

13 argues that the Proposed Order does not account for

14 lower kilowatt hour sales relative to variable

15 charges.

16               The Commission should reject these

17 arguments as it did in the formula rate docket.  With

18 respect to the statutory language, as the Commission

19 pointed out in its Order in the formula rate docket,

20 Section 16-108.5(c)(4) earlier provided that the

21 formula rate protocol including billing determinants

22 remain subject to a determination of prudence and
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1 reasonableness consistent with Commission practice

2 and law.

3               Accordingly, the Commission can make

4 appropriate adjustments to historical weather

5 normalized billing determinants consistent with such

6 a determination.  And with respect to the variable

7 charges, ComEd fails to consider that the adjustment

8 the Commission accepted in the formula rate docket

9 and which is proposed again here is not intended to

10 be a comprehensive restatement of the billing

11 determinant.  Rather, it is designed to more

12 accurately include new customers along with the plant

13 additions built to serve those new customers.

14               More to the point as the Commission

15 pointed out in the formula rate docket, there is no

16 simple correlation between the client and kilowatt

17 hour sales.  It goes into the variable charge and the

18 increase in billing determinants that reflects

19 ComEd's new business.  Many factors such as energy

20 efficiency and the economy may contribute to a

21 decline in kilowatt hour sales.  Here as in the

22 formula rate docket, ComEd has simply provided no
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1 evidence of a declining usage.

2               So for these reasons, Staff recommends

3 that the Commission's Final Order adopt the

4 conclusion in the Proposed Order with respect to

5 billing determinants.  It is consistent with the

6 Commission Order in Docket 11-0721.  It ensures that

7 the billing determinants are based on accurate

8 information, and it results in prudent and reasonable

9 rates.

10      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Are you saying, Mr. Sagone,

11 that the kilowatt hours of the usage is never or

12 can't be a useful determinant here or that there

13 isn't any evidence here that would allow it to be a

14 determinant in this particular case?

15      MR. SAGONE:  Right.  There is no evidence here.

16      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.  Thank you.  Questions?

17 Go ahead.

18      MR. SAGONE:  Turning to the issue of

19 accumulated deferred income taxes or ADIT related to

20 accrued vacation pay, Staff agrees with the Proposed

21 Order's conclusion that the intervenors' proposed

22 reduction of the rate base is inappropriate in this
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1 proceeding.

2               The intervenors proposed a reduced

3 rate base by the ADIT that they assert is associated

4 with ComEd's accrued vacation pay deferred debit.  So

5 Staff agrees that the intervenors' proposal may have

6 merit if such deferred taxes were showed to exist.

7 However, the intervenors did not provide any

8 authoritative accounting or financial reporting

9 guidance in support of their position.

10               Further, Staff was unable to identify

11 any precedent, statutory guidance or governing

12 accounting or financial authority which directly

13 supported the intervenors' position.

14      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  Mr. Sagone, with

15 regard to Mr. Effron's testimony and the exhibits

16 that he provided to the record, is it Staff's

17 position that it was not the winner of the day with

18 regard to compelling evidence to find that merit that

19 they suggest in their position on this issue?

20      MR. SAGONE:  If I understand your question, I

21 think that's an accurate way of saying that.  They

22 didn't win the day in this case in Staff's opinion.
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1 That doesn't mean that that might not change in the

2 future, but right now Staff doesn't feel that there

3 is sufficient basis to support their conclusion.

4      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  So, in fact, the

5 testimony that was presented contrary to the position

6 of the Company and the Proposed Order comes to the

7 conclusion it's correct.  The evidence just didn't

8 rise to that occasion and may at some point in time

9 if there is different evidence that's introduced in

10 the record?

11      MR. SAGONE:  Yes.  And as such, it is unclear

12 whether there is a basis for a claim that a deferred

13 tax liability related to the accrued vacation pay

14 deferred debit exists.  And to your point,

15 Commissioner, Staff does believe that a definitive

16 conclusion on this issue cannot be reached until such

17 time as this complex issue can be subject to greater

18 scrutiny and the positions of all the parties be

19 fully vetted.

20               And, therefore, Staff does agree with

21 the Proposed Order's conclusion, at least at this

22 time, that the intervenors' proposed reduction to
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1 rate base is inappropriate.

2      MS. CARDONI:  Good afternoon, Chairman and

3 Commissioners.  My name is Jessica Cardoni.  I will

4 be presenting on the remaining two issues, rate case

5 expense and charitable contributions, and I know I am

6 the third person to address these topics.  So I want

7 to be brief and just talk about Staff's position

8 generally, and I am, of course, happy to answer any

9 questions that you have.

10               On the issue of rate case expense, the

11 Proposed Order correctly disallows the 244,000 that

12 ComEd spent on legal and expert witness fees to

13 prepare for a case under Article 9 that it never

14 filed.  Section 9-229 in its incorporation into the

15 EIMA statute does not allow for recovery of just any

16 rate case expense in any rate case proceeding.  If

17 that were true, the Company could include costs from

18 years earlier.

19               ComEd was under no obligation to

20 become a participating utility under Section 16-108.5

21 of the Act.  On a separate issue related to rate case

22 expense, the PO disallows ComEd's rate case expense
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1 in preparing for Docket 11-0721 because it claims

2 there is no record evidence to support it.  Staff

3 agrees that the burden of proof is on the Company to

4 provide information such that the Commission can come

5 to a decision about whether certain expenses are just

6 and reasonable.  As the PO points out under Section

7 9-229, a party seeking attorneys fees and expert

8 witness fees must provide evidence that specifies the

9 services performed, by whom they were performed, the

10 time expended and the hourly rate charged.  As the

11 ALJ noted, the Company did not provide sufficient

12 evidence to satisfy these parameters, and therefore,

13 the PO appears to conclude that you, the Commission,

14 could not make such a determination of justness and

15 reasonableness as well.

16               ComEd has filed a motion to supplement

17 the record with certain data request responses.

18 Staff will point out that it doesn't object to the

19 motion, but if this evidence is admitted into the

20 record, it will of course be up to you to determine

21 whether that evidence allows it to make the

22 determinations required by Section 9-229.
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1               On the issue of charitable

2 contributions, the Proposed Order correctly disallows

3 ComEd's donations to out of service territory

4 charities.  As you are aware, recent Commission

5 orders have disallowed these donations to out of

6 service territories, because the public has been

7 interpreted as the ratepaying public.  It is

8 unreasonable for ComEd's ratepayers to support

9 organizations in other states.  However, the Proposed

10 Order improperly allows ComEd to recover from

11 ratepayers donations that it has made to

12 organizations that may be political in nature, in

13 contravention of 9-224 of the Act, which is the

14 Metropolitan Mayors Caucus.

15               No one is saying that ComEd is

16 prohibited from these donations, but these costs

17 should not be recovered from ratepayers.  Section

18 9-224 prohibits recovery of any expenses for

19 political activities or lobbying.  Because cash is

20 spongeable, any donation that's given to an

21 organization that participates in political

22 activities could be supporting that political
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1 activity.

2      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Could be, but let me stop you

3 there and ask a question.  I mean, we are not saying

4 it could be.  By asking for a disallowance of all of

5 that, you are assuming that all of them are.

6      MS. CARDONI:  What Staff is assuming is that if

7 we know or we discuss that an organization is

8 political in nature or does participate in lobbying,

9 we would like to know from the Company what its

10 donation went to so that we are assured that it meets

11 the 9-227 parameters.  Since 9-224 prohibits the

12 donations recovered by ratepayers to organizations in

13 political activity, we want to make sure that Staff

14 is hoping to ensure that 9-227 is applicable here and

15 that the donations do meet the charitable purpose.

16 So that's all Staff is looking for.

17      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  So is that any group that is

18 registered -- in Staff's opinion, is that any group

19 that's registered as a lobbying organization or any

20 group that has lobbyists that work for it?  Where is

21 the line there?

22      MS. CARDONI:  What Staff did during its
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1 discovery period was any organizations that it didn't

2 know what they did or didn't have information from

3 the Company about whether it's a charity or what that

4 organization does, it did some of its own research

5 and then asked further follow-up data responses.  And

6 it also looked online and saw some of the

7 companies' -- or the organizations' mission

8 statements and saw that some of these organizations

9 do participate in some political activities, and it

10 went back to the Company again and asked for more

11 clarification, what was your charitable donation for,

12 and it either didn't receive sufficient information

13 or didn't receive information at all.  Therefore,

14 Staff can only assume that it might be contravened

15 under 9-224 and it could disallow the donation.  So

16 Staff is only just looking for information, and if

17 they don't get that information from the Company,

18 then we are unclear whether 9-227 should apply.

19      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  And I understand what you are

20 saying.  One question I have is, how would it get

21 over that burden if they also applied the all the

22 money is spongeable argument to it, because that
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1 would almost seem like that's one they could never

2 get past, no matter what they say the money was for

3 in the particular case.  It's that question in a

4 sense.

5      MS. CARDONI:  I think that's an excellent

6 point, Chairman, but I think this was addressed

7 specifically as it related to the American Legion

8 donation.  Everybody agrees that the American

9 Legion -- some donations have been permitted in the

10 past to the American Legion, but the American Legion

11 does do some political activity.  However, the

12 donations that have been permitted in the past by

13 this Commission, it's been very clear what those

14 donations were for.

15               I think there was an Illinois American

16 case where the donation was specific to be veterans'

17 meals.  It was indicated.  The company was able to

18 show this is what our donation went to.  So Staff

19 approved that -- approved that donation or felt that

20 that donation was covered under 9-227.

21      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  The machinations

22 that's Staff is going through with regard to these
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1 charitable donations is quite troubling.  First we

2 had the 501(c)(3), which is nowhere in the statute.

3 Now you have another filter to of all things suggest

4 that the American Legion should not get a donation

5 from our utilities.  I mean, it's un-American, No. 1,

6 and No. 2, this is not what the statute provides, and

7 for our Staff to be creating rules or filters, I

8 think is the word that's used throughout the brief is

9 extremely troubling, and as I look at what's

10 contained in your initial brief, Thomas Alva Edison

11 Foundation, I went on their website and looked at

12 what they have.  They are about energy education and

13 opportunities for people to learn.  How is that like

14 not a good idea for one of our companies to

15 participate in that?  Project Brotherhood, Unit Negro

16 College Fund, this is just -- it's just --

17      COMMISSIONER FORD:  Troubling.

18      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  It's amazing and

19 troubling.  And I think Staff has taken quite a

20 license, and I understand the position that the

21 Commission has taken with regard to this at some of

22 the cases in the last two years with looking at the



67

1 rate case expense.  There is a proceeding going on

2 relative to that now, but just as the Chairman

3 pointed out, you know, it's kind of skewed.  Are

4 there donations that are made to, for instance, the

5 Citizens Utility Board?  Would those be kicked out?

6 They lobby.

7               So, I mean, you know, I think that

8 there is these organizations that are out there that

9 do wear many hats and they are worthwhile, and those

10 organizations depend on this miniscule amount of

11 money.  It's probably 50 cents on somebody's annual

12 bill, but our legislature has enacted a law that

13 tells us that we must allow this to occur.  It also

14 tells us we can't make up the rules relative to this,

15 and I take that seriously.  And whether you like it

16 or don't like it or don't think it should be there,

17 it is here, and that's what the law is.

18               So it's troubling to me that Staff

19 is -- beyond micromanaging is selecting out and

20 creating their own rules, a subset of rules or

21 attempting to in all of these.

22      COMMISSIONER FORD:  I certainly concur with all
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1 of that, because coming from a military family, my

2 father fought in World War II.  I had two brothers in

3 Vietnam.  My sister was in the Army, and do something

4 to the American Legion?  It's unconscionable in my

5 opinion, and certainly with the United Negro College

6 Fund.  It's been eons.  The Urban League sponsors

7 that and for Staff to willy-nilly look at these

8 organizations?  All of them are creditable.  I am

9 just alarmed about this issue, and I do understand

10 that we are looking at charitable contributions, but

11 all of our utilities all over the country give to

12 these kinds of organizations.  I would be upset if

13 these utilities did not give back to the community.

14 It's very upsetting for me.  I might have to stay on

15 the Commission another year.  Thank you.

16      MS. CARDONI:  If I can just respond.  I think

17 people have raised very important points.  I think

18 it's important to note that ComEd made about almost

19 $7 million in donations and Staff looked -- only had

20 questions about 600,000 of those donations, and I

21 certainly don't think Staff is attempting to do any

22 kind of willy-nilly rulemaking or rules, imposing any
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1 rules.  I think simply what Staff was attempting to

2 do in this docket was say, I don't have the

3 information to know that it meets the public welfare

4 or charitable, scientific educational or religious

5 purposes.  I am asking some questions, and I don't

6 feel like the record was thorough.  So I can't under

7 the law say that they should be approved.

8      COMMISSIONER O'CONNELL-DIAZ:  In the last

9 proceeding Staff's position was that unless they were

10 a 501(c)(3) corporation, they wouldn't qualify.

11 Where is that in the statute that tells us that we

12 must take that position?

13      MS. CARDONI:  Are you referring to the Ameren

14 proceeding?

15      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  Yes.  So they are

16 making up rules.

17      MS. CARDONI:  I think, Commissioner, they

18 definitely brought that up.  You are absolutely

19 right, but my understanding was that Staff used that

20 as -- I don't know what -- I mean, there is no way

21 Staff can know what an organization is.  American

22 Legion, that's different, but Staff can't know what
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1 every organization is, and they have to do some

2 digging to find out what that organization does.  So

3 501(c)(3) is a good bright line to say, well, the

4 federal government considers this a charity.  At

5 least I know it's a charity.

6      COMMISSIONER O'CONNELL-DIAZ:  Isn't that in

7 contravention of the statute in that Subset 1 that

8 suggests that we cannot instrument any type of

9 rule -- or I forget.  I don't have it in front of

10 me -- that contravenes the intent of that statute?

11 And that's what I suggest this 501(c)(3) is.  And

12 let's be clear.  The American Legion is not a

13 501(c)(3).  It's another type of an entity.  But

14 under Staff's rubric or filter, they would never

15 qualify because they are not a 501(c)(3).

16      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  These are many

17 worthwhile organizations in our communities.

18      MS. CARDONI:  Which is why I don't believe that

19 Staff tried to say, if it's not a 501(c)(3), it's not

20 a charity.  We don't want to accept anything from

21 that.  Staff wanted more information about what that

22 charity and what that organization did.
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1      COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  Let me just say a couple

2 of things.  I don't want to distract from any other

3 comments that anybody has made, but when a not for

4 profit corporation receives a donation, that donation

5 can very easily be restrictive to a use that would --

6 and all your letter is saying here is the $2,000 with

7 a boilerplate comment that it cannot be used for

8 whatever purposes you don't want it used for.  And

9 not for profit corporations are also required to do

10 fund accounting.  So if a donation is given and it's

11 restricted to a specific fund within that

12 corporation, that corporation has to account for that

13 money being spent for that purpose.

14               Now, cash is spongeable, but at the

15 same time, the not for profit corporations are held

16 to a higher standard for how that cash is actually

17 being used.  So as we proceed through this process to

18 sort through all of this and come up with a

19 consistent ruling, all of these issues I think can be

20 taken into consideration and -- but not for profit

21 corporations are held to a higher standard for how

22 they are using money that's given to them.
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1      MS. CARDONI:  I think that's a good point,

2 Commissioner.  And I wanted to address Commissioner

3 O'Connell-Diaz's question or comment about the

4 language in the specific section that talks about not

5 creating rules, and I think what you are speaking of

6 is the sentence that says, "In determining the

7 reasonableness of any donation, the Commission may

8 not establish by rule a presumption that any

9 particular portion of an otherwise reasonable amount

10 may not be considered as an operating expense.

11               And I think Staff's interpretation of

12 that is that this Commission cannot make a rule that

13 says, if a company is going to donate over a million

14 dollars, that's all they can do, or we are going to

15 only offer 50 on the dollar to any donations that the

16 Company makes.  It seems to me that that language is

17 restricted to monetary amounts, and that the

18 Commission can't make a rule just saying, this

19 donation is reasonable, but we don't want to allow

20 anything over a million dollars, for example.  I'm

21 not sure if it restricts all rulemaking or other --

22      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  I think I would
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1 politely disagree with you, and then I go back to the

2 body of the statute where it's very clear what we are

3 allowed to look at, and certainly looking at things

4 closer, but there is a trend that I see that is in

5 opposite, I think, of what the statute clearly

6 provides that -- and as Commissioner Colgan noted,

7 the rulemaking, for lack of a better word, the

8 rulemaking that's coming out with regard to that,

9 that's something for us to see.  I am sure the

10 General Assembly will be looking at what that is,

11 too, and, in fact, if that is convening the laws as

12 they set forth, so -- but I just -- and the other

13 thing is, too, is going to Commissioner Colgan's

14 point, 501(c)(3), some of these organizations are not

15 501(c)(3) organizations.  They are just not, for many

16 reasons didn't select to be a 501(c)(3).  That

17 doesn't negate the fact that some of these

18 organizations are in the community providing for the

19 public welfare as contemplated under the statute.

20 So, again, the filter that's now starting to seem to

21 be set up when we look at this issue, it -- to me

22 it's troubling, and I think Commissioner Ford used
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1 that word.

2      MS. CARDONI:  I don't have anything else.

3      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.  Thank you.  You will

4 reserve the rest of your time then?

5      MS. CARDONI:  Yes.

6      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  All right.  Mr. Rippie and Mr.

7 Johnson, you've got eight minutes remaining.

8      MR. RIPPIE:  If you will permit, Mr. Chairman,

9 I am going to try to get my slides up here.

10      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.  We will wait.

11      MR. RIPPIE:  Your Honors, I am going to turn

12 first to the question of billing determinants and

13 spend the majority of my time there.  The notion that

14 ComEd generates an over-recovery due to an adjustment

15 or a lack of adjustment to billing determinants is

16 simply untrue.  The record, Exhibit 13.8, contains

17 the data on the chart that's in front you, and it

18 shows that even with ComEd's position and without

19 utilizing the adjustment that's being proposed, we

20 are at a $14 million loss.  What the adjustment that

21 is proposed does is create an additional $4 million

22 wedge and leaves us $18 million using the actual
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1 projected data and the actual historical data under

2 the revenue requirements that you established.

3               The notion, moreover, that the

4 historical data is somehow less accurate than the

5 forecast is equally untrue.  The forecast is just

6 that.  It's a forecast based on four months of data.

7 Whereas, the historical data is absolutely accurate,

8 but the critical issue is this notion of plant

9 additions and the $130 million of new business.

10 That's a category of ComEd's plant additions.  It

11 represents about 15 percent of the plant additions.

12 $130 million translates roughly into $13 million of

13 revenue requirement.  That, Commissioners, amounts to

14 less than one percent of the revenue requirement.

15               So what you are being asked to do is

16 under a matching principle drag forward customer

17 billing determinants that disturbs the linkage

18 between the revenues and the revenue requirement that

19 you established because less than one percent of the

20 revenue requirement is tied to 2012 data.  Talk about

21 the tail wagging the dog.

22               But if you want to do that, and I
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1 understand that there may be an argument for it, even

2 though I think it's misplaced, then please do it

3 uniformly.  There is no reason not to also utilize

4 the new kilowatt hour data.  Indeed, the notion that

5 kilowatt hour and other usage does not effect plant

6 is belied by every -- I'm sorry -- every demand

7 response argument that you hear here.

8               Advocates of demand response appear

9 before you and point out how it saves customers

10 money.  EIMA talks about enabling demand response

11 because it saves customers money.  The notion somehow

12 that the kilowatt hour use doesn't have a tie to

13 ComEd's investments in plant is simply not true.

14 Moreover, what horrible policy it would be for the

15 Commission to say that if a utility vehemently

16 supports demand response and drives down kilowatt

17 hour per customer use, they are going to get

18 punished, because their billing determinants would

19 fall and they won't even be able to recover the

20 revenue requirement that you determined was just and

21 reasonable.

22               Now, the argument is also made that
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1 somehow by reflecting the number of -- change in the

2 number of customers we have also reflected the change

3 in the kilowatt hour use.  I respectfully submit

4 that's incorrect.  What's reflected is the change in

5 the kilowatt hour use of the increased customers and

6 not of the rest of the customers.  Obviously because

7 you reflect a relatively modest increase in the

8 number of customers, about nine percent, you haven't

9 reflected the fact that there is a 0.76 decline in

10 their use.

11               So now that we are back to EIMA, I

12 think EIMA needs to be read collectively and that the

13 prudence and reasonableness standard referred to in

14 the preamble refers to the same prudence and

15 reasonableness standard that's been examined by this

16 Commission for seven years, and those are applicable

17 to utility costs and not to the language.  They are

18 not applied to billing determinants, but if -- again,

19 if you disagree, there is no reason not to apply that

20 same logic to the kilowatt hour use.

21               Lastly, I want to correct a statement

22 about the compliance filing.  Our compliance filing
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1 does, in fact, include all of the data that your

2 Honors ordered us to include in 11-0721.  We have

3 raised this issue again in this docket because it is

4 an issue of data and not of the formula rate, but

5 there is no question of our compliance.

6               Briefly, on rate case expenses.  I did

7 do a search of the record, and there was no

8 cross-examination on that issue.  Don't assume as the

9 arguments have been presented that there is no

10 evidence in the record on rate case expenses.  There

11 is.  Not one, but two expert witnesses testified to

12 exactly the criteria that 9-229 requires.  They swore

13 under oath that the expenses met that criteria and

14 that under the law of evidence is not only valid

15 evidence, but it is uncontested.  The notion that we

16 are required to also put into evidence the individual

17 data points underlying those opinions are not

18 substantiated, and moreover, EIMA must be given the

19 same respect here as 9-229.  And EIMA says that if

20 there is going to be a challenge to proof like that,

21 it has to be made with evidence and with

22 particularity, and neither occurred here.
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1      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Wait a minute.  Mr. Rippie,

2 before you go --

3      MR. RIPPIE:  Yes, sir.

4      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  So you are saying that with

5 respect to the rate case expense that no data points

6 at all are necessary as long as you have got somebody

7 who as, in this case, is not necessarily an expert in

8 the law, testifies that this meets the criteria, and

9 so you are saying that's --

10      MR. RIPPIE:  That's not quite what I am saying.

11 These witnesses did -- they were qualified.  Their

12 qualifications were set out, both Staff witness

13 Tolsdorf and Mr. Fruehe, and no party objected to

14 their qualifications to act as experts at any time.

15 So what I am saying, your Honor, is if there is

16 evidence where the witnesses explained what they

17 looked at and what their conclusions were and their

18 conclusions match 9-229, then under EIMA that is

19 sufficient and moreover, it's more than sufficient.

20 It's mandatory.  Thank you.

21      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you.

22      MR. JOHNSON:  Quickly, I just wanted to address
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1 the ADIT issue again and respond to AG, AARP and CUB.

2 You know, I sympathize with what Ms. Satter said

3 about how confusing this is.  I was a philosophy

4 major.  So I kind of spent all weekend getting up to

5 speed on what all this is, and it was a long weekend.

6      COMMISSIONER O'CONNEL-DIAZ:  It's long and

7 boring.

8      MR. JOHNSON:  I think -- what I have tried to

9 stick with in looking at this issue is the guts of it

10 is it's a temporary timing issue and that's what we

11 are trying to address.  And that's what the Proposed

12 Order grasped.  It looked at this deferred debit and

13 it focused on whether or not there was a timing issue

14 related to it.  I also wanted to address something

15 that Commissioner McCabe raised earlier.  It was the

16 netting question, and I wanted to clarify that while

17 it's not improper to combine those two items, the

18 deferred debit and the operating reserve liability

19 for rate base presentation purposes, it is improper

20 to do that netting for purposes of calculating the

21 ADIT amount.

22               ComEd cannot and did not receive an
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1 $8.5 million tax benefit simply by netting these two

2 amounts together.  I mean, that's the bottom line

3 here.  ComEd did not receive that tax benefit.  And

4 by creating one in this docket simply by netting two

5 numbers together doesn't make it so.  So I would ask

6 that the Proposed Order's conclusion be adopted on

7 that issue.

8               With respect to charitables I think

9 most of the points have been thoroughly discussed.

10 The concerns shared by some of the Commissioners are

11 also shared by ComEd.  I think it's important that

12 there is a rulemaking going on right now, and to the

13 extent there are issues on designating or tracing

14 funds, that those issues can be further vetted in

15 that rulemaking.  Thank you.

16      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you, Mr. Johnson and Mr.

17 Rippie.  Unfortunately we blew through all of the

18 time for AG and AARP, but CUB, I believe, you have

19 nine minutes and 40 seconds left.

20      MS. HICKS:  I am just going to respond quickly

21 to the final point that Mr. Johnson just raised

22 regarding ADIT, that ComEd did not receive an



82

1 $8.54 million tax benefit yet, and that's the key

2 that he left out.  And as he himself said earlier,

3 the accrued vacation pay will be capitalized in 2012,

4 and these rates will be in effect in 2013.  They will

5 have received this benefit by the time rates are in

6 effect.  That's all I have, I guess.

7      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Questions?

8      MS. HICKS:  I'm sorry.

9      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  I guess there are none.  Thank

10 you very much.  Mr. Sagone and Ms. Cardoni, you've

11 got 6:40 left.  Anything?

12      MR. SAGONE:  Yeah, actually just one.  I just

13 wanted to make one quick point regarding billing

14 determinants.  I believe the counsel characterized

15 Staff and intervenors' presumable position is

16 essentially ignoring any connection between kilowatt

17 hour per customer use into a plant is -- the kilowatt

18 per customer use doesn't have a tie to the new plant.

19 I think that mischaracterizes certainly Staff's

20 position.  Staff has made clear it's not that there

21 isn't potentially some connection there.  It's just

22 that as Staff has noted and as the Commission pointed
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1 out in its 11-0721 Order, it's that there isn't just

2 a simple correlation between the two.  Again, there

3 are many factors such as energy efficiency and

4 economy that can contribute to a decline in kilowatt

5 hour sales.  Thank you.

6      CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.  Thank you very much.

7 That will conclude today's oral argument.  On behalf

8 of the Commission, I thank the parties for their

9 presentations.  The record may be marked as heard as

10 taken, and this meeting stands adjourned.  Thank you

11 everyone.

12                 (END OF PROCEEDINGS.)
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